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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, -

Plaintiff,

-against-

ARAGON CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC,
ARAGON PARTNERS, LP, ZVI ROSENTHAL,
AMIR ROSENTHAL, AYAL ROSENTHAL,
OREN ROSENTHAL, DAVID HEYMAN,
HEYMAN & SON INVESTMENT
PARTNERSHIP LP, YOUNG KIM,

and BAHRAM DELSHAD,

Defendants,
and
EFRAT ROSENTHAL and RIVKA ROSENTHAL,

Relief Defendants.

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission™) alleges the

following against Defendants Aragon Cdpital Management, LLC (“Aragon Capital”),

Aragon Partners, LP (“Aragon Partners”), Zvi Rosenthal (“Zvi”), Amir Rosenthal

(“Amir”), Ayal Rosenthal (“Ayal”), Oren Rosenthal (“Oren™), David Heyman

(“Heyman”), Heyman & Son Investment Partnership, LP (“Heyman & Son”), Young




Kim (“Kim”), and Bahram Delshad (“Bahram”) (collectively, the “Defendants™), and |
against Efrat Rosenthal (“Efrat”) and Rivka Rosenthal (“Rivka”) (collectively, the
“Relief Defehdants”): |
SUMMARY
1. This case involves a brazen scheme of serial insider trading orchestrated
by a father and his sons which netted them, their friends, and other relatives at least $3 7
million. From at least 2001 'through N’oVember’ 2005 (the “Relevant Period™), the father,
Zvi, a former senior manaiger at Taro Pharmaceutical Indﬁstries, Ltd. (“Taro™),
systematically stole, on at least 13 occasiQns, material, nonpublic information from Taro,
traded on it in some instances, and provided it, directly or indirectly, to his sorrs: Amir, an
attorney formerly associated with a large law firm, headquartered in New York; Ayal, an
accountant formerly associated with PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”); and Oren, an
attorney formerly associated with a »Iarge. 1a{& firm, headquarfered in Los Angeles, eac‘h-of
whom traded on the information. The scheme grew to include other relatives and friends,
_ with Amir passing along tips about Taro to his father-in-law, Bahram,; his friend Heyman,
who was employed by Ernst & Young (“E&Y™); and Kim, his supervisor at Amir’s law
firm. Appendix A, attached hereto, illustrates the flow of inside information amorlg the
~ Defendants. | |
2. In addition to buying and selling Taro stock, the Defendants used the

stolen nonpublic material information to purchase or sell soﬁhisticated options contracts

that were designed to capitalize on stock price movements, but which would more easily
| escape detection than purchasing or selling stock. Through stratégic but frequent options

trading, the Defendants gamered significant gains (or avoided significant losses).



3. As the scheme progressed, Amir created a vehicle through which his
family could trade on Taro’s nonpublic information without detection. In 2003, Amir
created a hedgé fund, Aragon Partners, and its investment advisér, Aragon Capital, to
pool money from family members to trade in Taro securities. Through Aragon Partners,
the Rosenthal Defendants were able to obscure their identities, further distancing
themselves from Zvi, the source of their inside information at Taro. Amir also traded in
his wife’s brokerage account to avoid assomatlon of his trading w1th Zvi.

4. In its later stages, certain of the Defendants broadened the scheme to
include trading on nonpublic information stolen from entiﬁes other than Taro. On at least
two occ_:asions,'Ayal and Heyfnan misapprdpriated material, nonpublic information |
concerning impending mergers (that ultimately never materialized) from their respective
employers, PwC and E&Y, and b.tipped Amir with the information. Amir then traded lon‘
it. Amir also tipped Kim with the informa_tion from Ayal aﬁd,Heyman, _ahd Kim traded -
on the information. | | |

5. By this dction, the Commission seeks, among other things, an order |
providing for: permanent injunctive relief against all of the Defendants, the disgorgement
of all profits and losses avoided from the unlawful insider trading activity set forth
dherein, plus’ prejudgment interest, and cix./ill monetary penalties; and disgorgement of all
ill-gotten gains and losses avoided by every Relief Defendant as a result of the insider
trading activity set forth herein.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
6. - The Commission brings this action pursuant to the authority conferred

upon it by Section 20(b) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”), 15 U.S.C. §



77t(b), and Section 21(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”), 15

- U.S.C. § 78u(d), for permanent injunctive relief against the Defendants, from‘engaging in
the transactions, acts, practices, and courses of business alleged in thisv Complaint and for
civil penalties pursuant to Sectior_l 21(dj of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3). The
Commission also bringe this action pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act, 15
U.S.C. § 78u-1, for civil penalties against the Defendants under the Insider Trading and

| Secuntles Fraud Enforcement Act of 1988 In addition, the Commission seeks an order
barring Zvi from acting as an officer or director of any issuer that has a class of securities
registered pursuant te Section 12 .of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 781, or that is
required to file reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act, 15U8.C. §
780(d), pursuant to Seetion 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §_ 78u(d)(2), and for
such other relief as the Court may deem apprepriate.

7. Venue lies in this Court pursuant to Sections 20(b) and 22(a) of the -
Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 77t(b) 77v(a), and Sections 21(d), 21A, and 27 of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d), 78u-1, 78aa. Certain of the acts, practiees,
transactions and courses of business alleged herein occurred Withiﬁ»the Southern District
of New York, and Amir, Ayal, Kim and Heyman lived and worked within this District.
Several of the communications between'a.nd among the Defendants were made from or
within this District and several of the trades were placed from the offices of Amir, Kirﬁ,
Ayal and Heyman within this District.

8. Defendants, direetly or indirectly, have made use of the means or

instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or the facilities of a national



securities exchange in connection vﬁth the transactions, acts, practiees and courses of
| business alleged he.reinr.' |
DEFENDANTS
9. Zvi, age 62, resides in Tenafly, New Jersey. Zvi is married to Rivka and
is the father of Aldir, Ayal, Oren, and Efrat. Zvi was elﬁployed by Taro from 1994 to
February 2006. From 1994 to 1997, Zvi worked at Taro Israel as. Assistant to the Senidr
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Taro Isfael, end supervised production at
Taro Israel’s Haifa, Israel plant. In 1997, he moved to Taro USA and began coordinating
all of Taro’s manufacturing worldwide as Taro’s Vice President of Materials
Management and Logistics. in 1998, the United States Attorney’s Ofﬁce for the Eastern
" District of New York charged Zvi with making falee claims to the United States
Department of Defense in vieiation of 18 U.S.C. § 267 in connection with Zvi’s work |
(prior to joining Tare) as Operations Manager at Isratex, Inc.; a company that |
manufactured military uniforms and clothing under codtraCt with the United States.
military. On April 14, 2000, Zvi pleaded guilty to a single felony count of felse claims in
- violation of 18 U.S.C. § 267. He was fined $20,000 and sentenced to three years’
probation, including six months of hoﬁe_conﬁnement with electronic monitoring,
although he was permitted to continue working at Taro. Dﬁring the Relevant Period, Zvi
engaged in certain of the transactions referenced herein through his Ameritrade account.
10. Amir, age 29, resides in New York, New York. Amir is _Zvi’s middle
son. Amir graduated from New York University School of Law in 2004, ahd was |
' admitted to the New York Bar in 2006. Amir was the mahaging member of Aragon

Capital, the investment adviser to Aragon Partners, the Rosenthal family hedge ﬂmd, and



trarded for the benefit of himself and his famlly in the »Aragon Partners’ brokerage
account. In September 2004, Amir was hired as an associate in the Structured Finance
group at a large law firm headquartered in New York, New York. Dunng the Relevant
Period, Amir made certain of the transactions referenced herem through three accounts:
() h1s Custodial Account at Brown & Co., an account originally set up for him by his
father, Zvi; (ii) his Ameritrade account; and (jii) his wife No ga Delshad’s ('“Noga”)‘
Ameritrade account;

11. Ayal, age 26, resides in New York, New York. Ayal is ZVi’s youngest
son. Ayal graduated from Rutgers College with a bachelor’s degree in management in
2001, and began working as an Associate at PwC. In 2002, he received a Masters degree
in accounting from the University of Texas (Austin) while working at PwC. Ayalisa
licensed Certiﬁed Public Accountant. In the spring of 2005, he moved from PwC’s Audit
Services Group into the Transac,tien Services Group. As an employee of PwC, Ayal
owed contractual, ﬁduciary and other duties of trust and confidence to PwC. Asa C_PA,
Ayal held a professional dhty to maintain the eonﬁdentiality of his clients’ information.
Ayal resigned from PwC on May 4,2006. During the Relevant Period, Ayal made _
certain of the trades referenced herein through Ayal’s. Custodial Account at Brown &

| Co., and through his Ameritrade account.

12 Oren, age 31, resides in Los Angeles, California. Oren is Zvi’s eldest
son. Oren graduated from the Uhiversity of Southern California Law School in 2003 and
began working as a litigation associate with the New Yorh office of a large law firm
headquartered in Loe Angeles, California. He was admitted to the New York Bar in

2004. In December 2005, Oren transferred to the law firm’s Los Angeles office, where



he worked on general éommercial litigation, white collar criminal defeﬁse, and internal
investigations until he resigned in January 2007. He was admitted to the bar of California
inJ uﬁe 2006. During the Relevant Period, Oren made Certgin of the trades referenced
herein through his Custodial Account at Brown & Co. and through his Ameritrade

» account.

13. Heyman, age 29, resides in New York, New York. Heyman graduated.
from Rutgérs College in 1999 and immediately began working at E&Y as an entry-level
auditor. While working at E&Y, Heyman obtained a Masters in Accounting from the
University of Virginia, and became a licensed Certified Public Accountant in 2003; As
an employée of E&Y, Heyinan owed contractual, fiduciary and oither duties of tru-st and
confidence to E&Y. AsaCPA, Heyman held a professional duty to maintain thé
confidentiality of his clients’ information. Heyman resigned from E&Y on J anuary 27,
2006. At the time he left, 'He}"man was a Senior Manager in the On-Call Consulting
Groﬁp. During th¢ Relevant Peﬁod, Heyman made certain of the transactions referenced
herein through his Amen'trade account, and through his Heymaﬁ & Spn accbﬁnt |
described below.

14. Kim, age 34, resides in Union City, New Jersey. Kim graduated from
Cornell University School of Law in 1998 and; in 2000, began working at the New York-
based iaw firm where Amir later worked. He wés admitted to the New York Bar in 2000.
-In 2002, he fransferréd to the firm’s Struéturgd Finance Group where he is currently
employed. From approximately September 2004 until June 2006, Kim supervised Amir.

| During the Relevant Period, Kim made certain of the fraﬁsactions rgfereﬁced herein»

through his Ameritrade account.



15. Bahram, age 56,l resides ‘in Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey. .Bahram, a
retired jewelry éhop owner, is Amir’s father-in-law. During the Relevant Period, Bahram
made certain of the trades through his Ameritrade brokerége account.

16. Aragon Capital is a Delaware limited liability company set up by Amir
in 2003 to act as the General Partnef of, and investment adviser to, Aragon Partners.

17. Al_'agon, Partners is a Delaware limited pannership set up by Amir in
2003 as a hedge fund, and the vehicle through which he piaced illicit trades using stolén
Taro nonpublic information. Amir, Oren, Ayal, Efrat and Rivka each are limited partners
in Aragon Partners and eéch has a 20% ownership stake: Aragon Paﬁners was funded by
transfers from each of Zvi’s children’s Custodiél Accounts, énd by separate deposits from
each of the limited partners. Amir made many of the illicit trades described below
through Aragon Partners’ CyberTradef,. Inc. account.v In all of the trades executed by
Amir in the Aragon Partners” account; he acted as the managing membér of Aragon
Capital. |

-18. - Heyman & Son is a lirﬁited .partnershjp and hedge fuﬁd formed by
Heyman in 2005 and ﬁlnded with mOney from Heyman,’s family. Heyman is the General
* Partner and his father is fhe oniy limited pé.rtner. During the Relevant Period, Heyman
made certain of the trades referenced herein through Heyman & Son’s &neritfade
brokerage account. |

RELIEF DEFENDANTS

19. Efrat, age 24, resides in Tel Aviv, Iérael. She is Zvi and Rivka’s

'daughter and is a limited partner in Aragon Partners. Efrat received a distribution of ill-

gotten gains from Aragon Partners in approximately May 2005. In addition, during the



Relevant Period,. Amir made certain of thé transactions referenced herein through Efrat’s
Cuétodial Account at Brown & Co.

20.- Rivka, age 60, resides in Tenafly, New Jersey. She is Zvi’s wife, the
mother of Amir, Oren, Ayal and Efrat, and a limited partner in Aragon Partners. She
reée_ived a distribution of ill-gotten gains from Aragon Pé.rtners in approximately May
2005.

'RELEVANT ENTITY

21. Taro is an Israeli corporation With its principal place of business in
Yakum, Israel. Taro develop’s, manufactures, and markets generic prescription and over-
the-couhter pharmaceutical products, and acﬁve phannéceutica’l ingredients, primarily in
the United States, Canada, and Israel. Taro earns most of its profits from sales in the
United States market. Taro USA is a United States-based, wholly owned subsidiary of
Taro operating in Hawthorne, New York. At all times during the Relevant Period, Taro’s
shares were registered under Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
| and quoted on the Nasdaq National Market uﬁder the syinbOl TARO. At all times during

the Relevant Period, Taro was a foreign private issuer and filed Forms 20-F annually.



FAC_‘TS

22. Throughout the Relevant Peried, thevDefendants stole material,
nonpublic information and traded on it. The Defendants used information stolen from
Zvi’s employer, Taro; Ayal’s employer, PwC; and Heyman’s employer, E&Y.
A. The Taro Insider Trading Scheme

| Zvy’s Access to Information at Taro

23. During the Relevant Peried, Zvi was employed at Taro as Vice President
of Materials Management and Lo gistice. In that position, he wae responsible for the
manufacture and dfstribution proeess of all of the prodncts Taro sells, including raw
material procurement,v inventory managemeni, and production scheduling. To coordinate
Taro’s nroduction and distribution, anci ensure that Taro matched product demand with
production and inventery levels, Zvi had acc'ess.to daﬂy electronic sales and order data
for the U.S. market (“Sales Reports™). In 2001 , he participated in daily sales data
meetings (“Daily Meetings”). Because Zvi had real-time access to Taro’s eales data; he
had early knowledge of the company’s earnings prospects.

24. Zvi’s production and distribution responsibilities also required that he be
. alerted to the progress of applications Taro had made to the U.S. Food & Drug
Administration (“F DA”) for approval of new products Taro wished to market. Zvi was a
-~ member of Taro’s Producf Launch Comnﬁttee (“PLC”»). The PLC met weekly to discuss
the status of various FDA approval pfocesses, and coordinated production of new |
products in the FDA pipeline with Zvi, so that he could coordinate production of batches
for the FDA and ultimately ensure rapid initial distribution of the product on the day Taro

obtained FDA approval. Zvi also met regularly with Taro’s Director of Regulatory
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Affairs, who would provide Zvi with the company’s changing estimates of expected FDA
approval for each pending drug or product so that Zvi couid begin drug;r productio.n‘ as
approval neared.

25. Zvi’s position gave him access to Taro’s most significant nonpublic
information:" financial information, including current sales and earnings proj ectioné, and
FDA approval of new products. Beginning in 2001, Z\ﬁ passed that information on to his
sons, and he, they and their friends, traded on it.

Taro’s Trading and Confidentiality Policies

26 Throughout the Reléva.t_lt Period, Taro’s “Statement of Policy
Concerning Trading in Securities of the >Company” (the “Trading Poiicy”) prohibited Zvi
or aﬁy member of his family from trading in Taro securities during spec.iﬁc periods
before and after public earnings announcements (the “Blackout Period”). Taro’s Trading
Policy prohibited directors, officers, and employees of Taro (and eaéh of their husbands,

- wives, parents, and children) from trading Taro securities at any time, except duringa
ten-day §vindow each quarter beginning the third business day after Taro publicly
annouﬁced its cjuarterly financial results, and ending the thirteenth business day following
the announcement. Virtually all of thé Rosenthal .Defe.ndants’ trades prior to .Taro’s
earnings announcements violated Taro’s Trading Policy.

217. Throughout the Relevant Period, Taro’s Discldsure Policy stated that
“employees, officers and directors must not discuss confidential, nonpublic information
about [Taro] with anyone outside [Taro].” In its Trading Policy, Ta.ro similarly

prohibited directors, officers and employees from “disclosing, or otherwise passing onto

11



anyone any information éoncernjng [Taro] and its plans and pfosp'ects of which [the
directors, ofﬁces and émployees becéme] éware thrqugh [their] work or otherwise.”
28. | From approximately May 2001 through November 2005, the Defendants
- engaged 1n a scheme to profit from trading Taro securities in advance of Taro
announcements concerning five FDA épprovals of vnew dfugs or products and eight Taro

- earnings announcements, yielding more than $3.7 million in illicit profits and avoided

losses:
| Date Announcement ' Total
' ’ ' Profits/
Losses
: _ Avoided
May 29, 2001 FDA Approval of CB Cream $121,335
July 19, 2001 Earnings Announcement $231,702
- | October 18, 2001 Earnings Announcement $188,898
| November 26, 2002 FDA approval of Econazole Nitrate $33,233
o Cream 1% |

February 20, 2003 Earnings Announcement $36,481
| April 16, 2003 Earnings Announcement $20,869
| April 29, 2004 - | Earmings Announcement $5,411
| July 29, 2004 Eamings Announcement '$1,536,120
August 20, 2004 FDA Approval of Loratadine Syrup | - $56,231
March 2, 2005 FDA Approval for Miconazole Nitrate $340,576

‘Vaginal Cream, 4% '
April 14, 2005 FDA Approval for Ciclopirox Olamine | $292,983

| Cream E .

April 26,2005 - Earnings Announcement $132,486
November 17, 2005 | Earnings Annouricement _ $750,922
Total Trading Profits and Losses $3,747,247
Avoided ' ' :

29.  Three detailed examples of the Defendants’ insider trading in Taro
securities are described below. The remaining announcements are described in

chronological order.
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November 17, 2005 Eafnings Announcement
30. At 7500 a.m. on-November 17, 2005, Taro announced its earnings for the
third quarter of 2005. They fell short of market analyst expectations, with Taro reporting
third quarter sales of $72.5 million and net income of $2.1 million, or $0.07 per share,_.
47% low;:r than the $4.0 million Taro reported during the third qﬁa.rter 0f2004. This
information was material. | |
| 31. A month earlier, on October 10, 2005, Taro responded to inquiries from
investors, analysts and reporting agencies by publicly annouﬁcing that it would release its
_quarterly earnings results in early N_ovembef 2005. On October 17, Taro’s finance
department generated the first draft of consolidated -third quarter financial results. On
Novembér 8, Taro issued a pfess release announcinlg that it would not release third
quarter earnings until November 17, 2005. By virtué of his access _to‘dal'i‘ly Sales Reports, |
Zvi knew that the company’s sales levels were low qorripared witﬁ previous quarters, and
understood the impact that would have on Taro’s earnings.‘ |
32. During the time preceding Taro’s earniﬁgs announcement for the third

quarter of 2005, Zvi cominuniéated regularly, directly or indirectly? Withv Amir, Oren, and -
Ayal, and provided them with the material, nonpublic informa_tion he possessed‘
concerning Taro’s quarterly results. Amir passed the tip to Heyman and Kim. As a result
of .the information Zvi supplied, Amir, Oren, Ayal, and Heyman liquidated bullish
ﬁositions they had previoﬁsly established in Taro stock of options, ;md established a
bearish strategy, using the knowledge that the price of Taro stock or options wéuld '
decline after release of Taro’s weak 2005 third quarter earnings. Defendants made the

following trades surroundihg the November 17, 2005 earnings announcement:
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10/18/2005 | B | 8] Nov25Puts
10/18/2005 ‘ Loss avoidance | $ 41,209.51
10/24/2005 | B 100 | Nov 20 Puts
10/24/2005 | B 44 | Nov 20 Puts
10/24/2005 | B 56 | Nov 20 Puts
11/17/2005 | S (100) | Nov 20 Puts
11/17/2005 | S (100) | Nov 20 Puts $ 49,362.49
- ~ Total Profit $90,572.00
Noga: :
Oren .
9/19/2005 | S (30) | Jan 22.5 Puts
10/21/2005 | B 51 Jan 22.5 Puts
10/21/2005 | B 25 | Jan 22.5 Puts
10/21/2005 _ Loss avoidance $17,716.51
10/25/2005 | S | (3,200) | TARO shares
10/25/2005 ' 'Loss avoidance $ 22,066.16
10/31/2005 | S (20) | Nov 25 Calls '
11/18/2005 | Expired 20 | Nov 25 Calis - ' $ 973.96
11/2/2005 | S (15) | Dec 25 Calls . ‘
12/16/2005 | Expired 15 | Dec 25 Calls $1,327.70
11/7/2005 | B~ 15 | Nov 22.5 Puts '
11/9/2005 | S (15) | Nov 22.5 Puts $ 1,380.40
Total Profit $ 43,464.73
Oren:
.} Ayal
10/10/2005 | S (15) | Nov 25 Puts
- 10/20/2005 | B 15 | Nov 25 Puts
10/20/2005 Loss avoidance $ 11,602.76
11/7/2005 | B 100 | Nov 20 Puts .
11/14/2005 | S (100) | Nov 20 Puts $ 4,827.68
Total Profit $ 16,430.44
Ayal: :
Heyman
‘ 5/23/2005 | B 600 | TARO Stock
6/13/2005 | S (20) | Jul 35 Puts
6/14/2005 | S (30) | Jul 35 Puts
7/13/2005 | B 4,200 | TARO stock
7/18/2005 | B 800 { TARO stock
10/19/2005 | S (5,600) | TARO stock
10/19/2005 Loss avoidance $ 47,079.67
- 10/24/2005 | B 66 { Nov 20 Puts
10/24/2005 | B 15 | Nov 20 Puts
10/24/2005 | B 19 | Nov 20 Puts
10/24/2005 | B 50 | Nov 20 Puts
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11/7/2005 | B 100 | Nov 20 Puts
11/17/2005 | S - (100) | Nov 20 Puts $ 27,826.72
1117/2005 | S (150) | Nov 20 Puts $ 53,368.46
Total Profit $128,274.85
Heyman:
Heyman & Son ,
6/14/2005 | S (20) | Jul 35 Puts
7/13/2005 | B 2,000 | TARO stock
10/19/2005 | S (2,000) | TARO stock :
10/19/2005 Loss $ 16,847.10
| Avoidance
10/24/2005 | B 50 | Nov 20 Puts
11/17/2005 | S (50) | Nov 20 Puts $11,902.39
Total Profit $28,749.49
Heyman & :
. Son:
Young Kim : ‘
11/3/2005.| B 10 | Nov 20 Puts
11/3/2005 | B 5 | Nov 20 Puts
11/17/2005 | S (15) | Nov 20 Puts $4,010.32
‘ Total Profit $ 750,922.12
11M17/2005
- earnings:
33. Trading concerning Taro’s November 17, 2005 earnings announcement

resulted in more than $750,000 in total profits and losses avoided.

34.

July 29, 2004 Eérnings Announcement:

On July 29, 2004 at 7:00 a.m., Taro released its second quarter earnings

results, reporting that the quarter was the worst quarter, from a sales perspective, that

Taro had ever reported. Taro reported a $17.6 million operating loss, compare'd» with

operating profit of $18 million for the second quaﬁer 0f 2003. Quarterly sales were

$49.1 million compared with $74.8 million in the second quarter of 2003 and earnings

per share were $0.08, compared with $0.97 for the second quarter of 2003. This

information was material.
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35. On June 28, 2004, Taro’s CFO sent a mémOrandum to all department
heads, requesting an immediate review of all projects, é headcount for the balance of
2004, and proposals to reduce costs by 10%. The same day, Zvi sent an email to Taro
Israel employees ordering a reduction in manufacturing to avoid a build-up of inventory.

| 36. On July 6, 2004, Zvi received an efnail from Taro’s Finance Department
explaining that Taro had to start making plans to dramatically reduce inventory levels
immediafely because inventory growth was dramatically éffecting_ Taro’s cash flow.

37. | By virtue of his position, Zvi had access to material, nonpubiic
information, including daily Saiés Reports, between February and June 2004 thét showed
the dismal quarter Taro was experiencing. On June 16, 2004, Z\}i attended a Sales &
Operations meeting to discuss the quarter’s actual sales and its. negative performance
relative to the sales forecast. On June 23, Zvi attended a Sales & Operations meeting
where the sales outlook for the quarter was discussed. By June 23, Zvi knew that the
* quarter’s actual sales would not ﬁeet the forecast. From Juﬁe 23 to the end of the quarter
- on June 30, Zvi was aware that products shipped from the warehouse fell short of
ﬁrojections. and the extent of the shortfall of actual sales versus forecasted sales. The
sales shortfall caused Taro to altervits production plans to avoid a buildup of inventory
and to match production levels to reduced sales forecasts. Taro Canada’s Director of
: Mateﬁals Mgnagement di_scussed the éudden séles shortfall and associated production
plan changes With Zvi, and as the end of the quarter approéched, she, Zvi, and others at
Taro made changes to the production plans in response to the falling sales.

38. During the period preceding Taro’s July 29, 2004 earnian

announcement, Zvi traded on the material, nonpublic information, and communicated the
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nonpublic information relating to the sales shortfall directly or indirectly to Amir, who

traded on the material, nonpublic information, and tipped Heyman and Bahram with the

~ information, each of whom also traded on the information. Defendants made the

following trades surrounding the July 29, 2004 earnings announcement:

7129/2004 Earnings

Loss
Defendant Trade Date BuySale Qty | Description Avoided/Profit
Aragoh
Partners
6/25/2004 | B 20 [ Aug 45 Puts
6/25/2004 | B 20 | Aug 40 Puts
. 6/25/2004 | B 21 [ Aug 40 Puts
6/28/2004 | B 39 | Aug 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B 50 | Oct 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B | 50 | Aug 40 Puts
7/29/2004 | B 5,000 | TARO stock
7/29/2004 | B. /5,000 | TARO stock
7/29/2004 | B 5,000 | TARO stock
7/29/2004 | B 5,000 | TARO stock
8/2/2004 | S (2,000) | TARO stock
8/2/2004 | S (13,000) | TARO stock
8/2/2004 | S (5,000) | TARO stock $363,113.59
6/29/2004 | S (100) | Aug 40 Calls
6/30/2004 | S (100) [ Aug 40 Calls__.
7/1/2004 | S (200) | Aug 40 Calls
7/1/2004 | S (23) | Aug 40 Calls
7/1/2004 | S (30) | Aug 40 Calis _
8/20/2004 | Expired 453 | Aug 40 Callis _ $ 261,934.58 -
7/6/2004 | S (10) | Oct 40 Calls '
7/6/2004 | S (90) | Oct 40 Calls
7/7/2004 | S (10) | Oct 40 Calls
7/7/2004 | S (40) | Oct 40 Calis
7/8/2004 | S (150) | Oct 40 Calls
7/8/2004 | S (100) | Oct 40 Calls
7/8/2004 | S (50) | Oct 40 Calls
10/15/2004 | Expired 450 | Oct40 Calls $ 216,370.23
7/6/2004 | S Jan 40 Calls
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(100)

Jan 40 Calls

7/7/2004 | S (50)
7/7/2004 | S (50) | Jan 40 Calls
11/26/2004 | B 200 | Jan 40 Calls $ 121,487.18
~ - | Total Profit .
Aragon: $ 962,905.58
Noga (by Amir)
7/6/2004 | B - 20 | Aug 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B 10 | Aug 40 Puts
- 7/6/2004 1 B 20 | Aug 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B 30 | Aug 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B 10 | Aug 40 Puts
7/6/2004 | B 30 | Aug 40 Puts
7/29/2004 | S (20) | Aug 40 Puts
7/29/2004 | S (20) | Aug 40 Puts
- 7/29/2004. | S (20) | Aug 40 Puts
7/29/2004 | S (60) | Aug 40 Puts $214,966.34
'| Zvi Rosenthal
7/20/2004 | S (30) | Sep 25 Calls:
9/17/2004 | Expired 30 | Sep 25 Calls $ 31,143.27
Heyman
7/6/2004 | S (100) | TARO stock
7/6/2004 Loss avoidance $ 1,904.90
7/6/2004 | B 25 | Aug 40 Puts
- 7/29/2004.1 S (10) | Aug 40 Puts
 7/29/2004 | S (15) | Aug 40 Puts $ 40,065.93
7/14/2004 | B 40 | Aug 35 Puts
7/29/2004 | S (10) | Aug 35 Puts :
7/29/2004 | S (30) | Aug 35 Puts : $ 41,845.83
Total Profit
Heyman: $ 83,816.66
Bahram .
7/12/2004 | S (10) | Aug 35 Calls
7/12/2004 | S (270) | Aug 35 Calis
7/15/2004 | S (45) { Aug 35 Calls
7/23/2004 | S (50) | Aug 35 Calis
8/20/2004 | Expired 375 | Aug 35 Calls $ 180,450.26 |
7/19/2004 | S (100) | Aug 30 Calls
8/20/2004 | Expired 100 | Aug 30 Calls $ 62,837.53
Total Bahram: $243,287.79
Total Profit
7/29/2004 ,
earnings: $1,536,119.64
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. 39. - In appreciation for the Taro tips Amir gave him concerning the July 29,
2004 earnings announcement, Heyman paid for a plasma television that Amir bought on
August 29, 2004 for $6,645.
| 40: In connection with the July 29, 2004 éarnings announcement, Amir
received appr_oximately $66,000 from Bahram aé a kickback of approximately 25% of the
profits Bahram made on the annpuhcement. |

41. Trading concerning the July 29, 2004 earnings release resulted in more

than $1,500,000 in profits and losses avoided. o
| May 29, 2001 ‘Annoul-lcement of FDA Approval of CB Creani

42. " On or about May 29, 2001, Taro announced that the FDA had approved
its application to disﬁ‘ibute a new generic drug, Clouimazole/Bétamethaéone
Dipropionate Cream USP (“CB Cream”). This information was inateriél.

43, By virtue of his responsibility for coordinating production and shipment
of new product and because éf his involvemenf in the PLC meetings, Zvi knew Taro’s
estimates of when it could expect FDA approval for CB Cream. From September
through November 2000, Zvi attended PLC meetingé where the group discussed the
status of CB Cream production and progress in the FDA approval process. Zvi was in
charge of fhe production plan for CB Cream, and was responsible for ensuring that Taro
~ manufactured and papkaged sufﬁciént stocks of CB Cream so that it was ready to ship to
distributors and customers immediately upon FDA approval. In March 2001, Zvi
pafticipated in PLC meetings and was aware that Taro expected FDA épproval of CB

Cream some time in April 2001. By May 2, 2001, Zvi was receiving daily reports from
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_T_aro"s home‘ offices in Israel concerhiﬁg CB Cream production in anticipation of an
expecfed apprpval from the FDA. By May 9, 2001, Taro employees involved in the
product launch of CB Cfeam knew thaﬁ FDA approval would mosf likely come by the
first Wéek of June 2001. On May 9, 2001, Taro learned in a conference call with the
FDA that CB Cream Was in “first generic drug review,” which usually extends the FDA
approval process by three to four weéks. Taro’s.C_hairman and Vice Chairman
cdmmunicated the FDA’s schedule to the PLC. Also on Méy 9, 2001, Zvi assisted Taro’s
Direcfor of Regulatéry Affairs with preparing a response to FDA requests by translating
documents written in Hebrew ‘concerning production of CB Cream.

44, On May 29, 2001, at 2:54 p.m., Taro received a fax from the FDA
notifying it of the FDA’s approval of CB Cream. Taro issued a press release at 5:26 p.m.
the same day, announc;ing the FDA a_pproval. Taré was the first generic manufacturer to

enter the market with the producf.
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45,

regularly, directly or indirectly, with Amir and Ayal, providing them with the material,

Throughout the approval proéess for CB Cream, Zvi communicated

2

. nonpublic information he possessed concerning the FDA approval for CB Cream, and

both Amir and Ayal traded options in advance of the announcement. The Defendants

- made the following trades surrounding the May 29, 2001 announcement of FDA

22

Approval of CB Cream:
5/29/2001 | FDA approval for CB Cream
Defendant Trade Date Buy/Sale | Qty Description. Profit
Amir
.56/17/2001 | B 100 | Jun 60 Calls
5/17/2001 | B 45 | Jun 60 Calls
'5/18/2001 | B 55 | Jun 60 Calls
5/29/2001 | B 5 | Jun 60 Calls
. 6/1/2001 | S (50) | Jun 60 Calis
6/1/2001 | S (30) | Jun 60 Calls
6/1/2001 | S (30) | Jun 60 Calis
6/1/2001 | S (20) | Jun 60 Calls
6/1/2001 | S (20) | Jun 60 Calls
6/1/2001 | S (20) | Jun 60 Calls
6/1/2001 | S (20) | Jun 60 Calls
6/1/2001 | S (15) | Jun 60 Calls $ 96,623.96
5/23/2001 | B 30 | Jul 65 Calls '
5/23/2001 | B 20 | Jul 65 Calls
6/1/2001 | S (50) | Jul 85 Calls $ 22,173.91
Total Profit
Amir: $ 118,797.87
Ayal.
5/22/2001 | B 1 | Jun 60 Call
5/22/2001 | B 2 | Jun 60 Calls
5/22/2001 | B -2 | Juh 60 Calls
5/22/2001 | B - 2 | Jun 60 Calls
5/25/2001 | B 1 | Jun 60 Call
5/30/2001 | S (2) | Jun 60 Calls
5/30/2001 | S (3) | Jun 60 Calls
 5/30/2001 | S (3) | Jun 60 Calls $ 2,536.91
Total Profit
5/29/01 FDA
approval of CB
Cream: $121,334.78



~ 46. | Trading conceining the May 29, 2001 announcement of FDA approval
of CB Cream resulted in more tilan $121,000 in profits.
vJ'uly 19,2001 Earnings Announcement
47.  OnJuly 19, 2001, Taro announced that earnings for the second quarter
of 2001 were a record for the company. Taro reported a 49% improvement of sales from
the same quarter a year‘ eaﬂier, and net income of $6.1 million, or $0.48 per share. This |
information was material. | |
48, | B}i virtue _of his position ai Taro, his-paﬂicipatiori n Daily Meetings and
his access to daily Sales Reports, Zvi knew that Tairo’s second quarter 2001 earnings
would be strong. After the launch of CB Creani on May 29; 2001'7, Zvi knew that sales
were strong at Taro, and on or about May 31, 2001, Zvi received an email from his
- supervisor stating that Taro expected to ship.$3 million of CB Cream within the first
twenty four hours following the product launch. Zvi knew that only one week after its
launch, Taro had sold $40 million Iworth of CB Cream. On or a_bout July 3, 2001, Zvi
- received ihe final sales data for the second quarter, which showed that Taro had $69.2
. million in saies for thie“quarter, exceeding its quarterly forecast by 185%.
49. | During this time, Zvi communicated regularly, directly or indirectly,
“with Amir and Oren, providing them with the material, nonpublic inforrnation he
possessed regarding the impendiné earnings release. Amir and Oren each traded options
in their own accounts and/or accounts they. had access to -or controlled

while in possession of material, nonpublic information that Zvi supplied.
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50. Amir and Oren made the following profits by trading with material

nonpublic information surrounding the July 19, 2001 earnings announcement:

Defendant " Profit

Amir | $175811.74
Efrat (by Amir) $18,848.26
Oren $37,042.27
Total Profit $231,702
51. Trading concerning the July 19, 2001 earnings announcement resulted in

more thari $231,000.in profits.
| October 18, 2001 Earnings Announcement
52. On October 18, 2001 at approximately 7:02 a.m., Taro reported record |
third Ciuarter earnings for 2001. Taro reported approximately $41.4 million in svales, an
increase of approximately 52% over the same quarter a year earliéf, and an increase in net
income of apprdximately 161% to $7.3 million, or $0.29 per share. This iﬁforrnation was
material.

53, | By virtue of his position at Taro, prior to its public announcement,»Zvi
knew that Taro’s third quarter earnings in 2001 would be strong. Zvi;s participation in
Daily Meetings at Taro, and his constant access to daily Salés Reports, gave Zvi material,
nonpublic information about Taro’é sales and earnings for the fecord—breakjng third
quarter of 2001. .

54, | During the time preceding Taro’s third quarter 2001 earnings
announcement, Zvi communicated regularly, directly or indirectly, with Amir and Oren,
providing them with the material, nonpﬁblic informatibn he possessed about the
_impending earnings announcement. With the material, nonpublic inférmation, Zvi, Amir,

and Oren all traded options in Taro for their own accounts, and/or accounts they
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- controlled or had acceéss to in advance of Taro’s third quarter of 2001 earnings
announcement.
55. Zvi, Amir and Oren made the following profits by trading with material

nonpublic information surrounding the October 18, 2001 earnings announcement:

Defendant Profit
2vi ' $4,280.36
1 Amir v $92,489.56
Efrat (by Amir) $45,266.87
Oren $46,860.90
Total Profit $188,897.69
56. Trading concerning the earnings announcement on October 18, 2001

resulted in more than $188,000 in profits.

November 26, 2002 Announcement of
FDA Approval of Econzole Nitrate Cream, 1%

57. On November 26, 2002, Taro announced that the FDA had approved its
apphcatlon for approval of Econazole Nitrate Cream, 1%. This 1nformat10n was material.

58. By virtue of his position at Taro and because of his attendance at PLC
meetings, Zvi knew that Taro anticipated that it would be the first manufacturer to market
generic Econazole Nitrate Cream, and was freﬁuentlsl updated as to when Taro expected'
FDA approval. Zvi was involved from October 2001 to Apnl 2002 in preparing
validation batches for the FDA, and was responsxble for makmg the necessary productlon
preparations to be able to ship product to fill orders once final FDA approval was
received. |

59.. By early August 2002, Zvi knew that FDA appfoval and product launch
were expected to occur during the fourth quarter 2002. _After a meeting in August or

Septémber 2002, Taro’s Vice Chairman told Taro’s staff that the FDA would approve the
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application, and that Taro expected approval within the next féw months. Zvi knew that
the PLC viewed Econazole Nitrate C_ream asa proﬁtable product with no generic
competitioﬁ in the market. On November 15, 2002, Zvi attended a PLC meéting where
the group discussed the imminent FDA approval for Econazole Nitrate Cream.

60. During this time, Zvi communicated regularly, directly or indirectly,
with Amir, Oren, and Ayal, providing them with the mateﬁal, nonpﬁblic information he
possessed regarding the FDA’s anticipated approval of Econazole Nitrate Cream. Each
of them traded on the information.

61. Amir, Oren and Ayal made the foliéwing profits by trading with
material nonpublic information surrounding the announcement of FDA approval of

Taro’s application to distribute Econazole Nitrate Cream:

Defendant Profit
Amir $16,484.70
Oren $10,833.06
Aval $5,914.81
Total Profit - $33,232.57
-62. Trading surrounding the November 26, 2002 announcement resulted in

more than $33.,000 in profits.
' F_ebfuary 20, 2003 Earnings Ann.ouncement
63. | On February 20, 2003, Targ announced record results for both' the fourth
quarter 0f 2002, and for the year ending December 31, 2002; Fourth quarter sales and
year-long salgs each increased 43%, wi_th annual net income increasing approximately

71% to $44,500,000, or approximately $1 .52 per share. This information was material.
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64. By virtue of his position at Taro -and his consfant access to the daily
Salés Reports, Zvi knew about the increased sales levels at Taro, and knew that the
company’s income was dramatically increasing. |

65. In early 2002, Zvi communicated regularly, directly or indirectly, with
Am1r, Ayal, and Oren, and provided them with the material, nonpublic information he
possessed about the company’s earnings. ZVi, Amir, Ayal, and Oren each traded on the
information. |

66. ~ Zvi, Amir, AyaI and Oren made the following profits by trading with

material nonpublic information sunrounding the February 20, 2003 earnings

announcement: -
Defendant - Profit
2vi $3,322.60
Amir $4,409.74 |
Efrat (by Amir) $4,414.86
Noga (by Amir) ' $511.50
Oren $6,217.63
Ayal $17,604.40
Total Profits $36,480.73
67. Trading surroundiﬁg the February 20, 2003 earnings announcement

resulted in more than $36,000 in proﬁts.‘
A[;ril 16, 2003 E.arnings Announcement
68. On April 16, 2003, Taro announced record earnings for the first quarter
of 2003. Sales had increased 55% and net income increased 42% to $0.47 per share.
This information was material. |
69. By virtue of his_ position at Taro and his constant access to the daily

Sales Reports, Zvi knew that earnings would again be positive for Taro.
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70. Leading up to the vear_nings announcement on April 16, 2003, Zvi
communicated regularly, directly or indirectly, to Amir and/orvOren, providing them with
the material, nonpublic information he possessed concerning the impending earnings
announcement.

71. Amir and/or Qren made the following profits by trading with fnaterial

nonpublic information surrounding the April 16, 2003 earnings announcement:

Defendant Profit

Amir/Oren | $20,869.38

72. Trading surrounding Taro’s April 16, 2003 earnings announcement
resulted in mdre than $20,000 in profits.
April 29, 2004 Earnings Announcement
- 73. On April 29, 2004, Taro announced its eafnings for the first quarter of
2004. Taro reported that eamingé fell 21% in the first quarter compared with the first
quarter of 2003, with earnings of $1 1.1 million, or $O.37 per share. The earnings failed
_ vto meet analysfs’ expectations of $0.53 per share. This information was material. |
74. By virtue of his position at Taro, and his constént access to th¢ daily
Sales Reports, Zvi knew that sales during the first quarter of 2004 were disappointing.
By the middle of the ﬁrsf quarter, Zvi knew that Tarb’s executive commi_ttee was |
discussing tﬁe fact that gross sales were not meeting expéctations.
75. In the time leading up to the April 29, 2004 announcement, Zvi

communicated regularly, directly or indirectly, to Amir, providing him with the material

nonpublic information he possessed concerning the impending earnings announcement.
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Amir then traded on the information. Aftér receiving the information from Zvi, Amir '
then tipped Heyman, who traded on the information. Zvi also traded on the information.

76. Zvi, Aragon Partners and Heyman made the followin.g. profits by trading
with material nonpublic information _surrounding the April 29, 2004 earnings

announcement:

Defendant ‘ Profit
Zvi ' $3,243.93
Aragon Partners $2,060.00
Heyman . - $107.50
Total Profit: $ 5,411.43
77. Trading surrounding Taro’s April 29, 2004 earnings announcement

rcsulted in more than $5,400 in profits.
August 20, 2004 Announcement of FDA Approval of Loratadine Syrup
78. On August 20, 2004, Taro announced that-‘nhe FDA approved its
. applicaﬁon to distribute Loratadine Syrun . This information was material.
79. - Because of his involve_ment wi.th the PLC, _in'of.about April 2004_, Zvi
knew that FDA approval of Loratadine Syrup was‘expécted by August 2004. On July 15,
Zvi attended a PLC meeting at which final FDA approval for Lofatadine_ Syrup was
anticipated in September 2004. On August 12, the estimate for FDA >approva1 was
moved back to November or December 2004. Between August 12 and August 19, 2004,
| ZVi learne‘d fhat FDA approval had been moved up to August and was imminent.
80. Throughout the time leading up to the announcement of the FDA
approval of Loratadine Syrup, Zvi communicétéd regularly, directly or indirectly, with
Amir and Oren, and provided them with the material, nonpublic information he possessed

regarding Taro’s application for FDA approval of Loratadine Syrup. Amir then tipped
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'Heyman'wilth the material, nbnpublic infOrmatibn that Zvi supplied. Aragon Partners,
Amir, Oren, andiHeyman each traded Vﬁth the information Zvi supplied.

81. Amir, Oren and Heyman made the follqwing profits by tréding with
material nonpublic information surrounding the announcement of FDA approval of

Taro’s distribution of Loratadine Syrup:

Defendant Profit
Aragon Partners $ 46,184.08
Noga (by Amir) $ 8,151.37
Oren - . $231.50
Heyman - $1,663.96
Total Profit: $ 56,230.91
82. Trading surrounding the announcement that the FDA had approved

Taro’s Loratadine Syrup application resulted in more than $56,000 in profits.

March 2, 2005 Announcement of FDA Approval
Of Miconazole Nitrate Vaginal Cream, 4%

83. On March 2, 2005, Taro announced FDA approval for its product

Micbnazole Nitrate Vaginal Cream, 4% (“Miconazole Cream”). This information was
material. | o

84. By virtue of his position, which includéd coordinating production

schedules for newly—FDA-apprdv_ed products at Taro, and his participation in PLC
meetings,vai knew Taro’s estimates of when the FDA would approve the product. Ata
meeting on J énuary 13, 2005, Zvi was told that the FDA approval was anticipated
shortly. At the January 27 and Febfuary 3 nieetings, Zvi was told that FDA approval was
expected in February. At the February 10 méeting, Zvi was told thét the FDA’s review

was complete, and that the application was circulating for the FDA officials’ signatures.
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‘.Approximately one week' later, at another PLC meeting, Zvi was told that approval by the-
end of February remained the best estimate. |

85. | Thfoughout the time leading up to the FDA approval of Miconazole
Cream, Zvi communicated régula’rly, directly or indirectly, with Amir, Oren, and Ayal,
providing them with the material, nonpublic information he possessed concerning Taro’s
application for FDA approval of Miconazole Cream. Each of them traded on the
information. Amir also tipped Heyman with the méterial, nonpublic information Zvi had
supplied and Heyman traded on the information.

86. 7 Aragon Partners, Amir, Oren, Ayal and Heyman made the following

- profits by trading with material nonpublic information surrounding the announcement of

FDA approval of Taro’s application to distribute Miconazole Cream:

Defendant Profit -
Aragon )
Partners $276,275.01
Noga (by
Amir) 1 $25,794.40
Oren $11,637.98
| Ayal $ 2,655.26 -
Heyman $24,213.45
Total Profit

$ 340,576.10

87. Trading surrounding the March 2, 2005 announcement resulted in more
than $340,000 in profits. | | |
April 14, 2005 Announcement of FDA
Approval of Ciclopirox Olamine Cream
88. On April 14, 2005, Taro announced that the FDA had approved its

application to distribute Ciclopirox Olamine Cream. This information was material. -
89. By virtue of his position at Taro as the person responsible for

coordinating production in anficipa_tion of the launch of new products, his participation in
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PLC meetings, and his participation in at least.vfour additional meetings at which the
progress of the FDA review of Ciclopirox Olamine Cream was discussed, Zvi knew thaf
Taro would announce the appréval of Ciclopirqx Olamine Créam by the end of March. -
On March 31, at a PLC meeting, Zvi leamed that FDA approval was expected during the
Week of April 15.

90. Throughout the time preceding Taro’s April 14, 2005 announcement,
Zvi communicated reglilarly, directly or indirectly, Witil Amir an(i Oren, and provided
tﬁem with material, nonpubllic‘ information concerning Taro’s application for FDA
approval of Ciclépirox Olaminé Cream. Amir and Oren traded on the information, and
Amir passed along the material, nonpublic information Z{/i supplied to Heyman, who also
traded on the information. |

91. Aragon Partners, Amir, Oren and Heymanmade the following proﬁts by
trading with material nonpublic information surrounding the announcement éf FDA

approval of Taro’s application to distribute Ciclopirox Olamine Cream:

Defendant Profit
Aragon Partners $ 190,224.61
"| Noga (by Amir) $99,718.65
Oren . $371.95
Heyman & Son $2,667.40
Total Profit $ 292,982.61
92. Trading surrounding the April 14, 2005 announcement resulted in more

than $2 92,000 in profits.
April 26, 2005 Earnings Announcement
93, On April 26, 2005, Taro announced its first quarter earnings for 2005.
Taro’s eérnings were‘ down compared with the first quarter of 2004. Taro reported that

- profits declined 55% to $5 nﬁllion, or $0.17 per share compared to the first quarter of
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2004. Sales for the first quarter fell 6.6% to $78.5 million compared with $84. 1 millioh
for the first quarter 2004. Analysts expected earnings per share to be $0.21. This
mformation was material.

94. R By virtue of his position at Taro and because of his constant access to
the daily Sales Reports, among other things, Zvi knew materjal, 1_10npub1ic mformation
concerning Taro’s quarterly earnings prior to its announcemént.

95. During the time priof to the April 2:6, 2005 announcement, Zvi
c-ommun‘icated regularly, directly ‘or indirectly, with Amir and Oren, and provided them
with material, nonpublic information concerning Taro’s upcoming earnings release. Both
of them traded on the information. Amir tipped Heyman with the material, nonpublic
information that Zvi had Supplie_:d, and he traded on the information. -

96. . Aragon Partners, Oren and Heyman made the foilowing profits by'_

tradiné with material nonpublié information surrounding the April 26, 2005 earnings

announcement:
Defendant , Profit
Aragon Partners | ~$ 128,580.65
Oren $ 431.49
Heyman & Son $ 3,473.86
Total Profit $ 132,486.00
97. Trading surrounding the April 26, 2005 earnings announcement resulted

‘in more than $132,000 in profits.
B. The Scheme to Steal Information from Public Accounting Firms
98. In addition to trades based on material, nonpublic information from

Taro, Amir, Ayal, Heyman, and Kim misappropriated and traded on material, nonpublic
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information concerning pbssiblé mergers of public companiés from Heyman’s employer,
E&Y and Ayal’s employer, PwC. |

99. ©  When Héyman and Ayal misappropriated the information, both E&Y
and PwC had extensive confidentiality policieé that emphasized to employees the
importance of maintaining the confidentiality of information obtained through their work
-at E&Y and PwC.

Heyman’s Project AA Tip

100. On the morning of April 28, 2005, Heyman was assigned by E&Y to a
due diligence project with the code name “Project AA” for a public company client
(“Compax-ly A”), which was considering acquiriné another public compény (“Company
‘B”). Heyman’s supervisors assigﬁed him the task (_)f reviewing Company B’s financial
data to determine whether it was a suitable iflexger candidate with Company A.
Heyman’s sﬁpervisors also instructed him thaf the information pertaining to the potential
" merger was confidential. |
101 .. On April 28, the day Heymah was assigned to Project AA,‘at 12:24 p.m.,
Amir called Heyman’s cell phone. ‘During the call, Heyman provided Amir with the
mé.teriél, nonpublic information concerning the contemplated merger. -Approximately six
minutes after the phone call ended, 'Amir began buying securities of Coinpany Bin
Aragon Partners’ account. |

102. The next 'day,. on April 29, Heyrﬁan’s supervisor forwarded Heyman an
email from the engagement partner, which re-emphasized the confidentiality of client
information regardingvPr‘oj ect AA, and he feminded Heyman that Project AA was a

confidential project.
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103. In early May 2005, Amir tipped Kim with the confidential information
hé had received from Heyman concerning the companies invo.lved in Project AA. On
May 5 and 6, Kim bought call options for Company B. |

104. The merger anticipated in Project AA did not qccﬁr.

Ayal’s Project Vi‘ctOr Tip .'

105. In April 2005, Ayal trénsferred from PwC’s Audit Servi.ces Group to the
Transaction Services Group, a group at PwC that provides analytical services to PwC
clients considering mergérs or other transactions. In connection with his transfer, Ayal
was requireci to attend a special presentation about the importance of maintaih‘ing the
confidentiality of the material, nonpublic infoﬁriation to which Transaction Services had.
access. This training reiterated PwC’s general policies of which Ayal was already aware,
but focﬁsed_oh the special issues presented by work with the Transactiohal Seﬁices
Group. Part of the presentation included a general récitation of the facts involved in SEC
v. Drescher, No. 99 Civ. 1418. (SAS), 1999 WL 946864 (S.D.N;Y. 1999), in which a
former PwC manager, who disclosed material, no_npﬁblic information about a merger he
was working on to a friend, was found reckless and therefore liable under Section 10(b)
;md Ruie 10b-5 of the Exchange Act. The PwC partner who gave the preséntatién
emphasized the importance of éonﬁdentiality and cautioﬁed the audience, including Ayal,
to take extensive measures to maintain the confidentiality of information that the
Transaction Sewices Group learned during the course of its work.

106. In late May 2005, Ayal started working on a possible merger code-
named “Project Victor.” Ayal’s supervisors told him that Project Victor involved two’

publicly traded companies, and that PwC’s client was the target company (“Company

35



C”). Ayal’s supervisors assigned him to the task of revieWing financial statements of the
acquiring company (“Company D) as part of the due dﬂigence Work related to the
transaction. Ayal’s supervisors further instructed him that the information pertaining to
the transaction was cohﬁdential.
107. During the last week bf May, before leaving for the Memorial Day
holiday, Ayal reviewed audit files of Company D at the offices of E&Y. By the end of
the Memorial Day holiday 'we.ekend, Ayal commﬁm'cated materiai, nonpublic information
to Amir concerning the proposed merger. On the first trading day following the
Memorial Day holiday, May 31, 2005, between 9:35 a.m. and 12:44 p-m., Amir sold |
Company C put options in Aragon Parfners’ brokerage account. The following moming,
* Amir sold additional Corhpany Cput 6ptions. Additionally, Amir tipped Kim about
Project Victor, ;and on June 1 and 2, Kim bought Company C June call options baséd on
the tip from Amir.
108. On Friday June 3, at approximately luﬁch time, senior maﬁagement at’
Company C, PwC’s Project Victor client, called PwC to inform therﬁ that the deal had
been indefinitely postponed. o |
109. On June 3, iﬁuﬂediately after learning the néws at lunch, another
_ mémber of the PwC Project Victor team called Ayal and told him that the deal was off.
‘ Shortly thereafter, Ayal conveyed this material,‘n(‘)npublic information to Amir, and at
approximately 1:57 pm on June 3, Amir liquidated his positions. .

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

110. By virtue of the foregoing, and as set forth below, Defendants Aragon Partners,

‘Aragon Capital, Zvi, Amir, Oren, Ayal, Heyman, Bahram, Kim, and Heyman & Son, in
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connection with the purcﬁase orsale Qf securities, have: (a) émployed devices, schemves or
artifices to defraud; (b) made untrue stateménts of méterial facts and omitted to state material
facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; and (c) .engaged in acts, practices and courses of business which
would operate as a fraud or deceit upon purchasers, prospective purchasers, and other persons.

111. Defendants Aiégon Partners, Aragon Ca?ital, Zvi, Amir, Oren, Ayal, Heyman,
Eahram, Kim, and Heyman & Son, engaged in the conduct described a;bove knowingly br with
recklessness. |

112. By reason of the foregoing, Defendaﬁts Aragon i’artners, Aragon Capital, Zvi,
Amir, Oren, Ayal, Heymah, Bahram, Kim, and Heyman & Sén, violated, and‘unless enjoinéd,
V\;'ill continue to violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5
thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5]. |

113. By virtue of the foregoing, and as set forth below, Defendants Aragon Partners,
‘Aragon Capital, Zvi, Amir, Oren, Ayal, Heyman, Bahram, and Heyman & Son, in connection
with the offer or sale of securities, have: (a) employed devices, Séhemes or artifices to defraud;
(b) obtéined money or property by means of untrue statements of materiai faét or omissions to
state rhatcrial facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not m'isleading.; and (c) engaged in transactions, préctices and
courses of business which would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser. |

114. Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon' Capital, Zvi, Amir, Oren, Ayal, Heyﬁan,
Bahram, and Heyman‘& Son, engaged in the conduct described above knowingly or with

recklessness.

37



11 5. By reason of the foregoihg, Defendants Aragon ‘_Partners, AragOn.Capital, Zvi, |
Amir, Oren, Ayal, Heyman, Bahram, and Heyman & Son, violated, and uniess enjoined, will
continue to vfolate Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)].

| | COUNTI -
(Trading in Taro Securities in Violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and
Rule 10b-5 thereunder as to Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital, Zvi,
Amir, Oren, Ayal, Heyman, Bahram, Kim, and Heyman & Son)

116. Paragraphs 1 through 115 are realleged and incorporated herein by rgference. '

117. ~ Prior to each of the public announcements of FDA. approvgl of Téro’s
application to distribute new drugs réferred to herein -- speciﬁcaﬂy, the announcements relating
to FDA épprbvél of CB Cream, Econzole Nitrate Cream, Loratédine Syrup, Miconazole Cream,
and Ciclopirox Olamine Cream (thé “FDA Announcements”) -- information relating to the FDA
approvai and Taro’s estimates of when it would occur (the “FDA Approval Information™) was
material, nonpubli_c information. In addition, the FDA Approval Information was considered
confidential by Taro, and was intended solely fof internal corporate use.

118. - Prior to each of the public announcements of Taro’s quarterly earnings referred
to herein — spéciﬁcally, the announcements on July 19, 2001; Octdber 18, 2001; February 23.,
2003; April 16, 2003; April 29, 2004, fuly 29, 2004; April 26, 2005; and November 17, 2005
(the “Earnings Annouﬁcéments”) — information relating to Taro’s‘quarterly performance,
including information reiating to sales, inventory, and production during the quarter (the
“Financial Information”), was material, nonpﬁblic information. The Financial Information also
| waé considered confidential by Taré, and was intended solely for iﬁtemal corporate use.

119. Zvi learned of the FDA Approval Information and the Financial Information.in

the course of his employment at Taro. Zvi knew, or was reckless in not knowing, the fact that he
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‘owed Taro a fiduciary duty to maintain sucn information in confidence until it was publicly
disseminated.

_ 120. In breach of a fiduciary duty or similar relationship of trust or confidence owed
to Taro, Zvi fnisappropn'ated the material, nonpublic FDA Approval Information and the |
Financial nlfomation by communicating this infcrrnation, directly or indirectly, to Amir, Ayal
and Oren, while eXpecting to benefit from his disclosure. Amir, Ayal and Oren knew, or were
reckless in not knowing, that the FDA Appfcval .Infonnation and Financial Information they
learned about Taro from Zvi-was material and nonpublic, and had been misappropriated and/or
(iisclosed to them in violation of a ﬁduciary duty or similar relationship of tfust or conﬁdence,
and that they could not purchase or sell any Tarc cecuﬁties or tip others so that they could |
purchase or sell any Taro securities while possessing such infonnation.

121. © Notwithstanding their respective cbligations,. Zvi, Amir, Ayal, and Oren agreed
'. that Zvi, Amir, Ayal and Oren wouldbtrade in Taro securi’cies. As described above and in
connection with this agreement, Zvi, Amir (on behalf of himself, Aragon Partners, Noga and/or
Efrat), Ayal and O'ren traded in Taro securities as described above while in poseession of this
'miseppropﬁated, material, nonpublic information.
122. | Each of the trades executed prior to the announcements by Zvi, Amir '(on nehal»f
of himself, Aragon Partners, Noga and/or Efrat), Ayal and Oren described above censtituted a
separate direct or indirect violation of Section IO(b)_of the Exchange Act [15 US.C. § 78j(b)]
and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5]. |

| 123. Aiso in violation of his obligations, Amir tipped Heyman with material, nonpublic

| information about Tarc securities while expecting to benefit from the disciosure. Hey’man traded

on Amir’s tip and knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that the Financial Information relating -
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to the July 29, 2004; November. 17, 2005; and April 26, 2005 eamings announcements; and t_he
FDA Approval Information.relat.ing to the distributien of Miconazole Cream; Ciclopirox
Olamine Cream; and Loratadine Syrup that he learned about Taro was material and nonpublic,

' and had been misappropriated and/or disclosed to him in violation of a fiduciary duty or eimilar
relationship of trust or confidence, -and that he could net purchase or sell any Taro securities

. while possessing such information.

124. Each of the trades executed prior to the announcements by Heyman constituted
a separate direct or indirect violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act[15U.S.C. § 78j(b)]
and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

125.  Also in violation of his obligations, Amir-tipp.ed Bahram with material, nonpﬁblic
| information about Taro securities while expecting to benefit from the disclosure. Bahram traded
on Amir’s tip and knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that the Financial Information relating
to the July 29, 2004 earnings announcement that he learned about Taro was material and
nonpublic, and had been misappropriated and/or disclosed to him in violation of a fiduciary duty
oi' similar relatienship of truet or confidence, and that he could not purchase or sell any Taro
‘ ‘securiti.es while possessing such infoﬁnation. |

126.  Bach of the trades executed prior to the announcements by Bah.fam '
descﬁbed above constituted a separate direct or indirect violation of Section 10(b) of the -
Exchénge Act[15U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 105—5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

127.  Also in violation of his obligations, Amir tipped Kim with material, nonpublic
information about Taro securities while expecting to benefit from the disclosure. Kim traded on
Amir’s tip and knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that the Financial information relating to

the November 17, 2005 earnings announcements that he learned about Taro was material and
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nonpublic, and héd been misappfopriated and/or disclosed to him in violation of a fiduciary duty
or similar relationship of trust or confidence, and that he} could not purchase or sell any Taro
securities while p_ossessing such information.

128. Each of the trades executed prior to the announcements by Kim described
above constituted a separate direct or indifect violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange
Act [1.5 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

129.  Each of the Defendants is liable for the disgb'rgement of ill-gotten profits or losses
avoided that each realized through any insider trading in Tar§ securities, and Zvi, Amir, Oren,
and Ayal are jointly énd‘severally liable for all the trading profits and losses avoided through any
insider trading in Taro securities. |

COUNT II
(Trading in Taro Securities in Violation of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act as to
Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital, Zvi, Amir, Oren, Ayal, Heyman,
- Bahram, and Heyman & Son)
- 130. Paragraphs 1 through 129 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.

131. | Prior to each of the FDA Announcements, the FDA Approval Information was
material, nonpublic information. In addition, the FDA Approval Information was considered
conﬁdenfial by Taro, _gnd was intended solely for internal Corporate use.

132. Prior to each of the Earnings Anno'unce.ments, the Financial Information was
m’aterial,ﬁonpublic information. The Financial Information also was considered conﬁdenﬁal by
Téro, and was intended solely for internal corporate use.

133. Zvi learned 6f the FDA Approval Information and the Financial Information in
the course of his employmént at Taro. Zvi knew, or was reckless in not knowing, the'fact' that he

, owed Taro a ﬁdﬁciary duty to maintain such information in confidence until it was publicly

disseminated.
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134.  Inbreach ofa fiduciary duty or similar relationship of trusf or confidence owed
to Taro, Zvi misappropriated the‘matverial, nonpublic FDA Approval Information and the
Financial Information, and communicated this information, directly or indirectly, to. Amir, Ayal
and Ofen, while expecting to benefit from his disclosure. Amir, Ayal and Oren knew, or were
reckless in not knowing, that the FDA App_roval Infonnatjon and Financiél mfoﬁnation they
learned about Taro from Zvi was material and ﬁonpublic, and had been misappropriated andfor
. disblosed to them iﬁ violaﬁon of a fiduciary duty or similar relatibnship of trust or confidence,
and that they could not pﬁrchase or sell any Taro securities or tip others "so that they could
purchase or sell any Taro securities while possessing such information.

_ 135'. | Not\NithStanding their respective ébligations, Zvi, Amir, Ayal, and Oren agreed
that Zvi, Amir, Ayal and Oren would trade in Taro securities. As described above and in
connection with this agreement, Zvi, Amir (on behalf of himself, Aragon Partners, Noga and/or
Efrat), Ayal aﬁd Oren traded in Taro securities as described above while in possession of this
misappropriated, material, nonpublic information.

136. Each of the trades involving an offer or sale of Taro securities executed prior to
the announcements by Zvi, Amir (on behalf of himself, Aragon Partners, Noga and/or Efrat),
Ayal and Oren déscribed above constituted a separate direct or indirect violation of Section 17(a)
of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(@)].

137.  Also in violation of his obligations, Amir tipped Heyman with material, nonpublic
information about Taro securities while expeéting to benefit from the disclosure. Heyman traded
* on Amir’s tip and knew, or was reci(lesé in not knowing, that the Financiai Information relating
- to the July _29, 2004; November 17, 2005; and April 26, 2005 earnings announcements; aﬁd the

FDA Approval Information relating to the distribution of Miconazole Cream; Ciclopirox
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Olamine Cream; and Loratadine Syrup that he learned about Taro was mateﬁal_ and nonpublic,
and had been misappropriated and/or disclosed to him in violation of a fiduciary duty or similar
relationship of trust or confidence, and that he could not pﬁrehase or sell any Taro securities
while possessing such information.

"138. | Each of the trades iﬁvolving an offer or sale of Taro securities executed prior to
 the 'announcerrients by Heyman deseribed above constituted a s'ep.arate direct or indirect violation
of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)]. |

139.  Also in violation of his obligations, Amir tipped Bahram with matenal nonpubhc ]
1nformat10n about Taro securities Wh11e expectlng to beneﬁt from the dlsclosure Bahram traded
on Armr s tip and knew, or was reckless i in not knowing, that the Quarterly Performance -- _ -
Informatioﬁ relating to the July 29, 2004 earnings annouhcement that he learned about Taro was
material and nonpublic, and had been -misappropriated and/or disclosed to him in violation of a
fiduciary duty or similar relationship of trust or confidence, and that he could not purchase or sell
' any. Tapo securities while possessing such information.

140.  Each of the trades involving an offer or sale of Taro securities executed
prior to the announcements by Bahram described above constituted a separate direct or
indirect violation of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act[15 .U.S.C. § 77q(a)]. |

| 141. Each of the Defendahts is liable for the disgorgement of ill-gotten profits
or losses avoided that each realized throagh any insider trading in Taro securities, and
' Zvi, Amir, 'Oren, and Ayal are jointly and severally liable for all the trading proﬁts»and

losses avoided through any insider trading in Taro securities.
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COUNT III
(Trading in Other Securities in Violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule
' 10b-5 Thereunder as to Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital, Amir, Ayal, Kim,
and Heyman)

142.  Paragraphs 1 through 141 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.

143.  Prior to any public announcement 'concerning the companies involved in Project
AA, information concerning the possible transaction was material, nonpublic information. This
information was also cénsidered confidential by E&Y, and was intended solely for internal
corporate use on behalf of its client, Company A.

144. Heymanlleam‘ed of the information concerniﬁg the possible merger of companies
involved in Project AA in the course of his employment at E&Y. Heymaﬁ further knew, or was
reckless in not kﬁowing, that he owed E&Y a fiduciary duty to maintain such information in _
confidence until it was publicly disseminated, and that he owed Company A shareholders a duty

to-abstain from disclosing this information fsr the purpose of obtaining persoﬁal gain.

| 145.  Inbreach of these fiduciary duties or similar relétionships of trust or confidence
owed to E&Y and Company A shareholders, Heymaﬂ misappropriated material >n0np1'1b1ic
1nformat10n about the possible merger of Company A and Company B, and, whlle In possession
of this information, communicated this information, directly or indirectly, to Amir, while
' expecting to benefit from his disclosure.

~ 146.  Amir knew, or was reckless in not knowing that the infonhation he learned about
Project AA was material and nonpublic, and had been misappropriafed and/or disclosed to him in
' violation of a.ﬁduciary duty or similar relationship of trust or confidence, and that he cbuld not “
: purchaée or sell any Company A or Company B securities or tip others so that they could

purchase or sell any Company A or Company B securities while possessing such information.
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- 147. ° Notwithstanding his obligations, Amirt, on behalf of Aragon Partners, traded in
- Company B securities while in possession of this misappropriated, material, nonpublic
information. |

148. By the conduct described above,. Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital,
- Amir, and Heyman directly or indirectly, violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act[15U.S.C.
§ 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5]. |

149. Notwithstanding his obligations to refrain from disclosing the material nonpublic
information, Amir tipped Kim with material nonpublic information concerning Company Aor
Company B securities while expecting to‘ benefit from the disclosure. Kim traded on Amir’s. tip
and knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that the information he learned about Company A and.
Company B was material and nonpublic, and had been misappropriated and/or disclosed to him.
in violation of a fiduciary duty or similar relationship of trust or confidence, and that he could
not piJrchase or sell any Cornpany A or Conipany B securities while possessing such
information.

150. , Notwithstanding his obligations, as described aboi’ze, Kim traded securities of
Company B while in possession of this misappropriated, material, nonpublic information.

i5 1. By the conduct described above, Defendant Kim directly or indirectly, violated
Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15, U_.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §
240.10b-5]. o

152. Prior to any public announcement concerning the companies involved in Project
Victor, information concerning the possible transaction was materiai, nonpublic information.
This information was also considered confidential by PwC, and was intended solely for internal

corporate use on behalf of its client, Company C.
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153. - Ayal learned of the ihformaﬁo'n conceming the possible merger of companies
invblved in'Project Victor in the course of his employment at PwC. Ayal further knew, or was
reckless in not knowing that he owed PwC a fiduciary duty to4 maintain such information in
confidence until it was publicly disseminated, and that he owed Company C’s shareholders a
duty to abstain from disclosing this information for the purpose of obtaiﬁing personal gain.

154.  In breach of these fiduciary duties or similar relationships of trust or éonﬁdence
owed tb PwC and Cdmpany C shareholders, Ayal..misapprop'riated material, nonpublic
information about the possible merger of Company C and Company D, and, while in possession
of this informaﬁon, communicated this information, directly of indirectly, to Amir, while
expecting to benefit from his disclosure.

155. Amir knew, or was reckless in not knowing thaf the. information he learned about
Project Victor was fnaterial and nbnpublic, and had been misappropriated and/or disclosed to
hjmbin violation of a ﬁduci&y duty or similar relationship of trusf or confidence, and that he
could not purchase or sell any Company C or Company D securities or tip others so that they
could purchase or sell any Company C or Company D securities while possessing such- |
inf;)nnation.

156. Notwithstanding his qbligations,'Amir, ori behalf of Aragon Partners, traded in
Comﬁany C securities while in possession of this misappropriated, material, nonpublic
information.

| 157. By the conduct described abové, Defendants Aragbn Partners, Aragon Capital,-
Amir, and Ayal directly or indirectly, violated Section 10(b) of thé.Exchange Act[15US.C. §

783(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 CFR. § 240.10b-5].
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‘158. | Nofwifhstaﬁding his respective obiiga_ﬁons, Amir tippéd Kim with material
noﬁpub_lic information concerning Company C or Company D Secuﬁties, while expecting to
~ benefit from the disclosure. Kim traded on Amir’s tip and knew, or was .reckless in not knowing,
that ’;he information he learned about Company C and Company D was material and nonpublic,
and had been misappropriated and/or disclosed to him in violation of a fiduciary duty or similar
- relationship of trust or confidence, and that ho could not purchase or sell any Company C or
Company D securitiés while p_ossessing-su_oh informatioh.

15.9.. Notwithstanding his obligations, as descﬁbed above, Kim traded securities of
Company C while in posséssion of this misappropriaféd, material, nonpublic information. |

160. By the conduct described above, Defendant Kim directly or indirectly, violated
Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §
240.10b-5].

COUNT v

(Trading in Other Securities in Violation of Section 17(21) of the Securities Act as to
Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital, Amir, Ayal, and Heyman)

161.  Paragraphs 1 through 160 are realleged and inco;‘porated herein by reference.

162.  Prior to any public announcemént concerning the companies involved in Project
AA, information 'concerning the possible transoction was maferial, nonpublic infoﬁnation. This
' infoﬁnation was also considered confidential by E&Y; and was iﬁtended solely for internal
corporate use on behalf of its client, Company A.

163. Heyman learned of the information concerning the poséible merger of companies
involved in Project AA in the course of his employment.at E&Y. Heyman further knew, or wao

reckless in not knowing, that he owed E&Y a fiduciary duty to maintain such information in
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confidence until it was publicly disséminated, and that he owed Company A shareholders a duty
 to abstain from disclosing_this.infonnation for the i)urpose of obtaining personal gain.

164.  In breach of these fiduciary duties or similar relationships of trust or confidence
owed to E&Y and Company A shareholders, Heyman misappropriated maten'al, nonpublic
information about the‘possible merger of 'Compa.ny A aﬁd Company B, and, whilé in possession
of this information, communicated this information, directly or indirectly, to Amir, while
expecting to benefit from his disclosure.

165.  Amir knew, or was reckless in not knowing that the information he learned about
Project AA was material and nonpublic, and had been misappropriafed and/or disclosed to him in
violation of a fiduciary duty or similar relationship of trus“t 6r ;:onﬁdence, and that he could not
purchase or sell any Company A or Cofnpany B securitiés or tip others so that‘they could
burchase or sell any Company A or Company B securities while possessing such information.

166. Notwithsfandiﬁg his obligations, Amir, on behalf of Aragon Partners, traded in |
Company B securities while in possession of this misappropriated, material, nonpﬁblic
information. | |

167. | By the conduct described above, for any trading invoiving the offer or sale of
Company A or Company B securities, Defendants Aragon Partﬁers, Aragon Capital, Amir, and
Heyman directly' or indirectly, violated Section 17(a) of the Secu_rities Act [15U.S.C. § 77q(a)].

168. Pﬁor‘to any public announcement concerning thé comi)anies involved in Project
Victor, information concerning the possible transaction was material, nonpublic inforinafion..
This information was also cénsidered confidential by PwC, and was intended solely for internal

corporate use on behalf of its cli.ent, Company C.
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169. Ayal learned of the information concerning the possible merger of companies
. involved in Project Victor in the course of his employment at PwC. Ayal further knew, or was
_ reokless in not knoiving fhat he owed PwC a fiduciary duty to maintain such information in
~confidence until it was publicly dissominated, and that he owed Company C’s shareholders a
duty to abstain from disclosing this information for the purpose of obtaining personal gain.
170. In breach of these fiduciary duties or similar relationships of trust or confidence
| owed to PwC and Company C shareholders, Ayal misappropriated material, nonpublic
information about the possible merger of Company C and Company D, and, while in possession
of this infomation,"COMUnicated this inforrnatiOn, directly or indirectly, to Amir, while
expecting to benefit from his disclosure. -
171. Amir knew, or was reckléss in not knowing that the information he learned about
Project Victor was material and nonpublic, and had been misappropriated and/or discloseci to
him in violation of a ﬁduciary duty or similar relationship of trust or confidence, and that he
could not purchase or sell any Company C or Company D secuntles or tip others so that they
could purchase or sell any Company C or Company D securities while possessmg such
information. |
| 172. Notwithstanding his obligations, Amir, on behalf of Aragon Partners, traded in
Company C securities while in possession of this misappropriated, material, nonpublic
information. |
173. By the conduct descri‘tied above, for any tiading involving an offer or sale of
| Company C or Company D securities, Defendants Aragon Partners, Aragon Capital, Amir, and

Ayal directly or indirectly, violated Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)].
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RELIEF SOUGHT

WHEREFORE, the Cominission respectfully requests that this Court enter a judgment: -
| L
Permanently restraining énd enjoimng each of the Defendants, their officers, agents,
servants, employees, and attorneys, and t-hbse perso'ns.in active concert or participétion with
~ them who receive actual notice of the injunction by personal service or otherwise, and reach of
- them, from violating Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act,-and Rule 10b-5 thereunder;
II. |
‘Permanently festraining and eﬁjoimng Defendantls, Arégon Partners, Aragon Capital, 'Zvi,
Amir, Oreh, Ayal, Heyrﬁan, Heyman & Son, and Bahram, their officers, agents, sefvants,
| employees, and atto‘rheys, and»thosé persons in active concert orbarticipaﬁon with them Who
receive actual notice of the injunction by personal service or étherwise, and each of them, from
violating Section 17(a) of the Securitiestct;
| | IIL.
Ordering the Defeﬁdants and Relief Defendants to disgorge all profits and ill-gotten gains
realized from all the unlawful trading set fortH herein, plus pfejudgment interest;
| IV. |
Ordering that befeﬁdants Zvi, Amir, Ayal and Oren be held jointlyiand severally liable
for Deféndants Aragon Partﬁers, Aragon Capital, Zvi, Ainir, Oren, Ayal, Heyman, Heyma‘n‘,&
Son, Kim and Bahram’s disgor_gerhenf plus prejudgment interest and for Relief Defendants Efrat

and Rivka’s disgorgement plus prejudgment interest.
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‘J,‘ 7 ') 4'.,

V.

Ordering the Defendants to pay civil monetary penalties pursuant to Section 21A and/or

Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act;

VL
Ordering that Zvi be barred from serving as an officer or directof of any pubic company
pursuant to Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act; and
| VIL

Granting such other relief as this Court may deem just and appfopriate.

Dated: New York, New York
February 8, 2007

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION

Mark K. Schonfeld (MS-2798)

Regional Director

Attorney for Plaintiff

Northeast Regional Office .

3 World Financial Center, Room 4300
New York, New York 10281

(212) 336-1020

Of Counsel:

Nancy A. Brown
Gwen Licardo
Jonathan M. Redwine
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APPENDIX A: Flow of Inside Information Among Defendants 7

_ ZVI ROSENTHAL
Vice President of Material Management
TARO PHARMACEUTICAL IND., LTD.

| |

AMIR ROSENTHAL e Ao
" (Zvi’s middle son) : - ARAGON PARTNERS -
; , T : " Rosenthal Family =

~ Attorney . . HedgeFund = .

 RIVKA & EFRAT =\ .
- ROSENTHAL -
. (@Zviswifeand

- - daughter)

. OREN -
" ROSENTHAL
© (Zvi’s eldest son)

YOUNG KIM

 Attorney
(Amir’s supervisor) S

Attorney ; ;
. AYAL
ROSENTHAL
(Zvi’s youngest son)

PwC - CPA

Blue Arrows — Taro Inside Information

Red Arrows — PwC Merger Inside Information
Silver Arrows — E&Y Merger Inside Information
Green Arrows — Money or Kickbacks

Black Arrow — Control over Aragon




